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CORRIGENDUM NO 1 DTD 28.11.2025: Clarifications to pre-bid 
queries 

 
THE FERTILISERS AND CHEMICALS TRAVANCORE LIMITED 

CORPORATE MATERIALS  
           PD ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING 

UDYOGAMANDAL, KOCHI, KERALA – 683 501 

Phone: (0484) – 256 8345/8273   
E-mail: jayakumarp@factltd.com; aneeshya@factltd.com  

Website: http://www.fact.co.in 

 

Name of Work : Conducting Study of Rationalization of Manpower in Various Divisions   

of FACT Ltd.,  

ENQUIRY NO   : MM/181/E32508 DATED 13.11.2025 
Tender ID     :  2025_FACT_885462_1  

 
         
 

Please see the attached corrigendum details clarifications to the pre-bid queries.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                                                       Sd/- 

Asst Gen. Manager (Materials)-T&S 
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1. Clarifications to queries raised by bidders 
 

 

Sl 
No 

BIDDER CLARIFICATIONS / 
QUERIES FACT RESPONSE 

1 
Details of existing manpower of each 
department and whether contractual 
manpower is covered? 

Division-wise manpower (approx.) 
deployed is as follows: 
U-) 1030, CD– 700, F&F-33, HO – 
150, Mktg-110 Numbers excluding 
contractual manpower.  
 
Study to be done covering all areas of 
the company including contractual 
manpower (Deliverables Cl 5.1) 

2 

Details of Shift-wise deployment of 
Current Manpower - cadre-wise for 
each section (as mentioned in 
Section 3.0 of Special Term and 
Conditions of the Contract). 

 
Details will be provided to the 
contractor during Stage 1 of the 
study. 

3 
Request to increase duration of 
study of Stage 2 from 8 weeks to 16 
weeks  

The total study period is extended by 
4 weeks by increasing the Stage 2 to 
12 weeks (clause 7.2 of Special Terms 
and Conditions of Contract).  
Hence the total period of contract 
shall be 16 weeks. 

4 

Request to relax payment terms 

(Clause10.3.3 of Special Terms and 
Conditions of the Contract) by 
releasing 10% amount after the 
Signing of Agreement and another 
20% after completion of Stage. 

Clause 10.3.3 of Special Terms and 
Conditions of Contract regarding the 
payment terms is revised as follows: 

 10% on completion of stage 1 

 25% on completion of stage 2 

 40% on completion of stage 3 

 25% after acceptance of study 
report by Board 
 

5 
Extension of bid submission due 
date  

The last date for submission of bid is 
extended by 2 weeks. Date 
Corrigendum has been published. 
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6 
Permission to submit credentials 
without completion certificate, citing 
for the NDA clause with Client. 

There is no change in the Pre-
Qualification Criteria (Annexure II). 
PQ criteria as per the tender shall 
prevail. 

7 
Request to increase the eligibility 
criteria for annual turnover of Firms  

There is no change in the Pre-
Qualification Criteria (Annexure II). 
PQ criteria as per the tender shall 
prevail. 

8 

Relaxation in PQ criteria no 2 
regarding experience which requires 
that out of three past manpower 
study experience, at least two studies 
should be in Schedule A or B Central 
Public Sector Enterprises 
 

There is no change in the Pre-
Qualification Criteria (Annexure II). 
PQ criteria as per the tender shall 
prevail. 

 
 

2. Additional Clarification 

 
     It is further clarified that “Deliverables” mentioned at Cl 5.2 of Ann IV shall also be 

Division / Plant/ Section/ Function/ Post/ Category wise- for all managerial and 
non-managerial jobs/cadre.  

 
3. Submission of Additional Form 
 
    Bidders shall submit the attached form (Annexure XII) duly filled and signed along 

with Part A of the bid with regard to documents uploaded to meet the PQ criteria. 
 

 
     

All other terms and conditions remains unchanged. 
  

 
 



ANNEXURE XII

Criteria details

Minimum Criteria 
value to be 
satisfied by the 
agency

Documents required to be 
attached for evaluating the pre-
qualification criteria (**)

Type of document 
enclosed : 
[ Please Tick( √) type of 
document enclosed]

Certificate of incorporation of 
Company

Registration 
Certificate of 

Society or Trust 

Proof of  
establishment 
under the Act

Reference of document 
(Regn No./Ref No.) and 
date of issuance

Page No. in enclosure

Whether Turnover is below 
Threshold? (Provide information if 
Turnover is below Threshold, 
otherwise NA)

Whether self 
declaration 
submitted?

Yes      /     No      /    NA Yes   /  No  /  NA
Reference of document 
(Regn No./Ref No.) and 
date of issuance

Page No. in enclosure

DETAILS TO BE FILLED BY BIDDERS AND ENCLOSE ALONG WITH PART A OF TENDER

DESCRIPTION

1. Consultant

Bylaws of the 
Society / 

Trust Deed /2. Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company / Bylaws 
of the Society / Trust Deed / 
Partnership Deed with GST 
registration certificate (If turnover is 
below threshold, then self-
declaration to be submitted)

Consultant should be incorporated in India 
under Companies’ Act 1956 or Societies 
registered in India under Society’s 
Registration Act 1860 or Trusts registered in 
India under Indian Trust Act or established 
under the Act/Statute of Central Govt. or 
State Government or any partnership firm.

Partnership Deed with GST registration certificate 
(If turnover is below threshold, then self-

declaration to be submitted )

Statute of Central Govt. or State Government.

Pre-qualification Criteria to be met by the Bidders:

PRE-QUALIFICATION CRITERIA FOR BIDDERS

1. Certificate of incorporation of 
Company / Registration Certificate of 
Society or Trust / Proof of  
establishment under the Act/ Statute 
of Central Govt. or State 
Government.

Type of document 
enclosed : 

[ Please Tick( √) type of 
document enclosed]

 Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company / 

DETAILS OF DOCUMENTS UPLOADED IN PROOF OF PQ CRITERIA
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Criteria details

Minimum Criteria 
value to be 
satisfied by the 
agency

Documents required to be 
attached for evaluating the pre-
qualification criteria (**)

DETAILS TO BE FILLED BY BIDDERS AND ENCLOSE ALONG WITH PART A OF TENDER

DESCRIPTION

Pre-qualification Criteria to be met by the Bidders:

PRE-QUALIFICATION CRITERIA FOR BIDDERS

Particulars
Name of the Institution / 

Organisation - 1
Details of the Institution / 
Organisation where 
Manpower assessment 
study carried out?
Details of Manpower size of 
the Organisation?

Type of Organisation: 
[CPSE / Others]
If Others, pls specify.

Whether Schedule A or B 
CPSE?

Whether enclosed copy of  
contract / Agreement 

Reference No. of Contract 
/ Agreement

Whether enclosed 
Completion report from 
Client mentioning date of 
completion and size of 
client organisation
Reference No. of 
Completion Report

Whether enclosed Copy of 
Audited Report showing 
employees strength
Whether submitted 
Enclosure 1 filled and 
signed
Page No. in enclosure

Name of the Institution  / Organisation - 3
Name of the Institution  / 

Organisation - 2
(a) Past study 
experience

• 3 (Three) 
Manpower 
Assessment Studies 
carried out within last 
5 years (i.e. with 
respect to date of 
tender) in India with 
an Institution / 
Organization with size 
of 500 employees or 
more.

• Out of three 
studies, at least two 
study should be in 
Schedule A or B 
Central Public Sector 
Unit

a) for each of the three studies:

(i) Contract / Agreement 
(ii) Completion report from client
towards date of completion and size 
of the client Organisation (confirming 
> 500 employees). Copy of Audited 
report showing employees strength
b) Duly filled in and signed the 
prescribed format 
Enclosure: 1

2. Experience & Capability
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Criteria details

Minimum Criteria 
value to be 
satisfied by the 
agency

Documents required to be 
attached for evaluating the pre-
qualification criteria (**)

DETAILS TO BE FILLED BY BIDDERS AND ENCLOSE ALONG WITH PART A OF TENDER

DESCRIPTION

Pre-qualification Criteria to be met by the Bidders:

PRE-QUALIFICATION CRITERIA FOR BIDDERS

Whether submitted 
Enclosure 2 ? 

Page No. in enclosure

Type of certificate 
enclosed : 
[ Please Tick( √) type of 
document enclosed]

Graduate Engineer / 

Certificate Ref No. & 
issued date

Page No. in enclosure

Whether submitted 
Certificate of Experience 
from employer for Team 
Leader with 7 years 
experience?

Certificate Ref No. & 
issued date

Page No. in enclosure

Whether submitted 
Certificate of Experience 
from employer for Team 
Member with 4 years 
experience?

Page No. in enclosure

Graduate Engineer / Post Graduate 
Engineer / PG Diploma in 
Management

Duly filled in and signed format 
Enclosure: 2

(d) Experience of 
resource personnel:

(i) Post Qualification 
Experience (in years)

Team Leader : 7 Years

Member : 4 Years

Certificate of experience from the 
employer to be submitted

PG Diploma in Management Post Graduate Engineer / 

(c) Qualification for resource personnel

2. Experience & Capability
(b) No.of resource 
personnel

5 (Five)
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Criteria details

Minimum Criteria 
value to be 
satisfied by the 
agency

Documents required to be 
attached for evaluating the pre-
qualification criteria (**)

DETAILS TO BE FILLED BY BIDDERS AND ENCLOSE ALONG WITH PART A OF TENDER

DESCRIPTION

Pre-qualification Criteria to be met by the Bidders:

PRE-QUALIFICATION CRITERIA FOR BIDDERS

Whether submitted 
Certificate of Experience 
from employer for Team 
Leader with 3 years 
experience?

Certificate Ref No. & 
issued date

Page No. in enclosure

Whether submitted 
Certificate of Experience 
from employer for Team 
Member with 1 year 
experience?

Page No. in enclosure

Particulars FY 22-23

Details of Turn over

Whether submitted 
Audited Balance Sheet 
with declaration citing 
revenue from Manpower 
Consultancy business in 
India.

Page No. in enclosure

Whether submitted 
Audited P&L statement 
with declaration citing 
revenue from Manpower 
Consultancy business in 
India.

Audited Balance Sheet and Profit & 
Loss account statements of last 3 

Financial years ending ending 
31.03.2025 with declaration citing 

revenue from Manpower 
Consultancy business in India.

2. Experience & Capability

The Firm should have 
a minimum turnover 

of Rs. 25 Lakhs in 
each of the last three 
financial years ending 

31.03.2025.

Annual turnover of 
the firm / institution 

from the 
consultancy business 

in India

(ii) No. of Manpower 
assessment studies 
(post qualification) 
associated with the 
resource personnel

Team Leader : 3 Years

Member : 1 Year

Certificate of experience from the 
employer to be submitted

FY 24-25FY 23-24

3. Finance
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Criteria details

Minimum Criteria 
value to be 
satisfied by the 
agency

Documents required to be 
attached for evaluating the pre-
qualification criteria (**)

DETAILS TO BE FILLED BY BIDDERS AND ENCLOSE ALONG WITH PART A OF TENDER

DESCRIPTION

Pre-qualification Criteria to be met by the Bidders:

PRE-QUALIFICATION CRITERIA FOR BIDDERS

Page No. in enclosure

Whether enclosed 
undertaking as per 
Enclosure 3

Page No. in enclosure

Note : i) Bidders may preferably enclose one pdf file of PQ documents with page nos. for ease of carrying out evaluation of PQ documents. 
              ii) Bidders may sign and enclose the duly filled and signed copy of this sheet along with Part A of the bid (in PDF format)

4. The bidder should neither have been 
Debarred and / or blacklisted by any Central 
/ State Govt. Department / Universities / 
Educational Institutions / Organization.

Undertaking as per the prescribed 
format
Enclosure: 3
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